THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REOUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") take no responsibility for the contents of this circular, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

If you are in doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in International Elite Ltd. (the "Company"), you should at once hand this circular and accompanying proxy form to the purchaser(s) or transferee(s) or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser(s) or transferee(s).



(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 1328)

GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND REPURCHASE SHARES, RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS, AND NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice dated convening an annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM") to be held at Lily Room, 3/F, Best Western Plus Hotel Hong Kong, 308 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 6 June 2017 at 10:00 a.m. is set out on pages 14 to 17 of this circular. Whether or not you intend to attend the AGM, you are requested to complete and return the enclosed form of proxy to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong, in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as practicable and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the AGM. The completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person in the AGM and any adjourned meeting if you so wish and in such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
DEFINITIONS	1
LETTER FROM THE BOARD	
Introduction	3
General mandates to issue and repurchase shares	4
Explanatory statement	5
Re-election of Directors	5
General Information	9
Voting at the AGM	9
Responsibility statement	9
Recommendation	9
APPENDIX I - EXPLANATORY STATEMENT	10
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING	14

DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the following meanings, unless the context requires otherwise:

"AGM" the annual general meeting of the Company to be

convened on Tuesday, 6 June 2017 at 10:00 a.m. at Lily Room, 3/F, Best Western Plus Hotel Hong Kong, 308

Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong;

"Articles of Association" the articles of association adopted by the Company

and as amended from time to time by resolution of the

Shareholders;

"associate(s)" has the meaning ascribed to this term under the

Listing Rules;

"Board" the board of Directors;

"Chairman" chairman of the Board;

"Companies Ordinance" the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the laws of

Hong Kong;

"Company" International Elite Ltd., a company incorporated in

the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares

of which are listed on Main Board;

"connected person(s)" has the meaning ascribed to this term under the

Listing Rules;

"Director(s)" director(s) of the Company;

"GEM" Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange;

"Group" the Company and its subsidiaries;

"Hong Kong" the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the

People's Republic of China;

"HK\$" Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong

Kong;

"Latest Practicable Date" 24 April 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to

the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain

information contained herein;

"Listing Rules" the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange;

DEFINITIONS

"Main Board" the stock market operated by the Stock Exchange prior to the establishment of GEM, which excludes the options market and which continues to be operated by

the Stock Exchange in parallel with GEM. For the avoidance of doubt, the Main Board excludes GEM;

"Repurchase Mandate" the repurchase mandate proposed to be granted to the

Directors at the AGM to repurchase up to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

the AGM;

"SFO" the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of

the Laws of Hong Kong);

"Share(s)" the ordinary share(s) of HK\$0.01 each in the share

capital of the Company;

"Shareholder(s)" holder(s) of the Share(s);

"Share Issue Mandate" the general mandate proposed to be granted to the

Directors at the AGM to allot, issue and deal with up to 20% of the issued share capital of the Company as

at the date of the AGM;

"Stock Exchange" The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

"subsidiary" a subsidiary within the meaning of the Companies

Ordinance for the time being of the Company whether incorporated in Hong Kong or elsewhere and

"subsidiaries" shall be construed accordingly;

"Takeovers Code" the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share

Repurchases; and

"%" per cent.



INTERNATIONAL ELITE LTD.

精英國際有限公司

 $(Incorporated\ in\ the\ Cayman\ Islands\ with\ limited\ liability)$

(Stock Code: 1328)

Executive Directors:

Li Kin Shing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Li Yin

Wong Kin Wa

Li Wen

Independent non-executive Directors:

Chen Xue Dao Cheung Sai Ming Liu Chun Bao Registered office:

The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road Grand Cayman KY1-1280

Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong:

Room 3809-3810 Hong Kong Plaza

188 Connaught Road West

Hong Kong

28 April 2017

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam

GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND REPURCHASE SHARES, RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS, AND NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information in respect of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM relating to (i) the granting to the Directors a general mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares not exceeding 20% of the Shares in the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the resolution; (ii) the granting of the Directors a general mandate to repurchase the Shares not exceeding 10% of the Shares in the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the resolution; and (iii) the re-election of retiring Directors, and to seek your approval of the resolutions in relation thereto to be proposed at the AGM.

This circular contains the explanatory statement in compliance with the Listing Rules and to give all the information reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolutions.

A notice convening the AGM is set out on pages 14 to 17 of this circular.

Whether or not you intend to attend the AGM in person, you are requested to complete and return the enclosed form of proxy to the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as practicable but in any event not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the AGM. The completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person in the AGM or any adjourned meeting if you so wish.

GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND REPURCHASE SHARES

At the AGM, separate ordinary resolutions will be proposed to grant the general mandates to authorise the Directors (i) to allot, issue and otherwise deal with Shares not exceeding 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of passing of the resolution; (ii) to exercise all powers of the Company to repurchase issued and fully paid Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the passing of the resolution; and (iii) to extend the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with additional Shares as mentioned in paragraph (i) above by the amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under the Repurchase Mandate.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were in issue an aggregate of 9,083,460,000 Shares. Subject to the passing of the proposed resolutions for the grant of the Share Issue Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate, and on the basis that no further Shares will be issued or repurchased prior to the date of the AGM, exercise in full of the Repurchase Mandate will result in up to 908,346,000 Shares being repurchased by the Company, and the Directors will be authorised to allot and issue under the Share Issue Mandate up to 1,816,692,000 Shares, and to the extent the Repurchase Mandate is exercised, plus the amount of Shares representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under the Repurchase Mandate.

The Share Issue Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate shall continue in force during the period ending on the earliest of (a) the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company, (b) the date by which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required to be held by law or by the Articles of Association; or (c) the date upon which such authority is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. The existing general mandates to issue and repurchase Shares granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company on 31 May 2016 will expire at the AGM.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

An explanatory statement containing all relevant information relating to the proposed Repurchase Mandate is set out in the Appendix I to this circular. The information in the explanatory statement is to provide you with information reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolution to grant to the Directors the Repurchase Mandate.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the executive Directors are Mr. Li Kin Shing, Ms. Li Yin, Mr. Wong Kin Wa and Mr. Li Wen; the independent non-executive Directors are Mr. Chen Xue Dao, Mr. Cheung Sai Ming and Mr. Liu Chun Bao.

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third), shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Ms. Li Yin, Mr. Cheung Sai Ming and Mr. Chen Xue Dao, being Directors to retire in rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association, will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Brief biographical and other details of Ms. Li Yin, Mr. Cheung Sai Ming and Mr. Chen Xue Dao, who are proposed to be re-elected at the AGM are set out as follows:

MS. LI YIN (李燕), aged 42, is an executive Director and the chief operation officer of the Company and the general manager of China Elite. She is responsible for the Group's overall management, corporate planning and business development. Ms. Li obtained a diploma in Finance from Guangzhou University in 1998. Ms. Li has over 17 years of experience in the telecommunications industry. She has joined the Group and has been the assistant to the general manager of the Company since 2000. She is the sister of Mr. Li Kin Shing, an executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company.

Save as aforesaid, Ms. Li Yin did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save as disclosed, Ms. Li Yin does not have any relationship with any other Directors or senior management or any substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company and she does not have any interest (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities Futures Ordinance) in the Shares.

Save for the information disclosed above, the Board and Ms. Li Yin have indicated that there is no other information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules, and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

MR. CHEUNG SAI MING (張世明), aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in September 2007. Mr. Cheung is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor's degree of arts in accountancy and finance from the Heriot-Watt University in 2006. He has extensive experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Cheung is an independent non-executive director of Global Link Communications Holdings Limited since May 2016.

Mr. Cheung has served the Company as an independent non-executive Director for more than 9 years, however the Board considers that he continues to be independent and is able to satisfy the Listing Rules' requirements for independence as an independent non-executive Director for the following reasons:

- (a) Mr. Cheung is able to confirm his independence to the Stock Exchange in respect of each of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
- (b) Mr. Cheung has demonstrated continued independent judgement which contributes positively to the development of the Company's strategy and policies;
- (c) Since the listing of the Company in 2007, Mr. Cheung has not had and does not have any executive or management role or functions in the Company and its subsidiaries, nor has he been employed by any member of the Group;
- (d) Mr. Cheung does not receive any remuneration from the Company apart from Director's fees and does not participate in the Group's staff incentive plan or pension scheme;
- (e) Mr. Cheung does not receive any remuneration from a third party in relation to his directorship;
- (f) Mr. Cheung does not have any financial, business, family or other material relationships with the Group, its management, advisers and business;
- (g) Mr. Cheung does not hold any cross directorships or other significant links with other directors through involvement with other companies;

- (h) Mr. Cheung does not hold any issued Share capital of the Company;
- (i) Mr. Cheung does not serve as a director or employee of a significant competitor of the Group; and
- (j) After due and careful consideration, the Company's Nomination Committee considers Mr. Cheung suitably independent to carry out his duties as an Independent Non-executive Director.

Save as aforesaid, Mr. Cheung did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save as disclosed, Mr. Cheung does not have any relationship with any other Directors or senior management or any substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company and he does not have any interest (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities Futures Ordinance) in the Shares.

Save for the information disclosed above, the Board and Mr. Cheung have indicated that there is no other information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules, and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

MR. CHEN XUE DAO (陳學道), aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in September 2007. Mr. Chen graduated with his major of Telegraph and telephone in Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1967. Mr. Chen is currently an honorary member of the China Institute of Communications (中國通信學會), honorary chairman of the Guangdong Institute of Communications (廣東省通信學會) and honorary chairman of Guangdong Communication Industry Association (廣東省通信行業協會). Mr. Chen also holds the qualification of a senior engineer at Professor grade, and he has been granted the special subsidy by the State Council of the PRC for his prominent contributions to engineering science since 1992. From 2010 to 2014, Mr. Chen was an independent director of Eastone Century Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (Guangdong) (廣東宜通世紀科技股份有限公司), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 300310. Mr. Chen is currently an independent non-executive director of Directel Holdings Limited and an independent director of GCI Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (廣州傑賽科技股份有限公司), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 002544.

Mr. Chen has served the Company as an independent non-executive Director for more than 9 years, however the Board considers that he continues to be independent and is able to satisfy the Listing Rules' requirements for independence as an independent non-executive Director for the following reasons:

- (a) Mr. Chen is able to confirm his independence to the Stock Exchange in respect of each of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
- (b) Mr. Chen has demonstrated continued independent judgement which contributes positively to the development of the Company's strategy and policies;
- (c) Since the listing of the Company in 2007, Mr. Chen has not had and does not have any executive or management role or functions in the Company and its subsidiaries, nor has he been employed by any member of the Group;
- (d) Mr. Chen does not receive any remuneration from the Company apart from Director's fees and does not participate in the Group's staff incentive plan or pension scheme;
- (e) Mr. Chen does not receive any remuneration from a third party in relation to his directorship;
- (f) Mr. Chen does not have any financial, business, family or other material relationships with the Group, its management, advisers and business;
- (g) Mr. Chen does not hold any cross directorships or other significant links with other directors through involvement with other companies;
- (h) Mr. Chen does not hold any issued Share capital of the Company;
- (i) Mr. Chen does not serve as a director or employee of a significant competitor of the Group; and
- (j) After due and careful consideration, the Company's Nomination Committee considers Mr. Chen suitably independent to carry out his duties as an Independent Non-executive Director.

Save as aforesaid, Mr. Chen did not hold any other directorships in the last three years in public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save as disclosed, Mr. Chen does not have any relationship with any other Directors or senior management or any substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company and he does not have any interest (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities Futures Ordinance) in the Shares.

Save for the information disclosed above, the Board and Mr. Chen have indicated that there is no other information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules, and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The notice of the AGM is set out on pages 14 to 17 of this circular.

A form of proxy for use at the AGM is enclosed herewith.

To be valid, the form of proxy must be completed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and deposited at the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong as soon as practicable but in any event no less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the AGM. The completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person in the AGM and any adjourned meeting if you so wish, and in such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

VOTING AT THE AGM

Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules, all votes of the Shareholders at the general meetings must be taken by poll. The chairman of the AGM will therefore demand a poll for every resolution put to the vote of the AGM pursuant to Article 66 of the Articles of Association.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Group. The information contained herein relating to the Company has been supplied by the Directors, who jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge, opinions expressed in this circular have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are no other facts not contained in this circular the omission of which would make any statement contained herein misleading insofar as it relates to the Company.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the granting of general mandates to Directors to issue and repurchase Shares and the re-election of retiring Directors are in the interest of the Company and so recommend you to vote in favour of the relevant resolutions at the forthcoming AGM.

Yours faithfully
By order of the Board
International Elite Ltd.
Li Kin Shing
Chairman

This Appendix serves as an explanatory statement given to all the Shareholders, as required by the Listing Rules, to provide all the requisite information in relation to the Repurchase Mandate.

1 LISTING RULES FOR REPURCHASES OF SHARES

The Listing Rules permit companies whose primary listing is on the Stock Exchange to repurchase their fully-paid shares subject to certain restrictions, the more important of which are summarised below:

(a) Shareholders' approval

All proposed repurchase of securities on the Stock Exchange by a company with primary listing on the Stock Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution, either by way of general mandate or by special approval of a particular transaction.

(b) Share capital

Under the Repurchase Mandate, the number of Shares that the Company may repurchase shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the passing of the relevant resolutions. The Company's authority is restricted to purchase in accordance with the Listing Rules. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were in issue an aggregate of 9,083,460,000 Shares. Exercise in full of the Repurchase Mandate, on the basis that no further Shares would be issued or repurchased prior to the date of the AGM, would accordingly result in up to 908,346,000 Shares being repurchased by the Company. The Shares repurchased by the Company shall, subject to applicable law, be cancelled automatically upon such repurchase.

(c) Reasons for repurchase

The Directors have no present intention to repurchase any Shares but consider that the Repurchase Mandate will provide the Company with the flexibility to make such repurchase as and when appropriate and is beneficial to the Company. Such repurchases may, depending on the market conditions and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and its assets and/or its earnings per Share.

As compared with the position of the Company in its financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 (being the most recent published audited consolidated accounts), the Directors consider that there would not be any material adverse impact on the working capital and on the gearing position of the Company in the event that the proposed repurchases were to be made in full during the proposed repurchase period. The Directors will not propose to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such an extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company or on its gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate for the Company.

(d) Funding of repurchases

Repurchase of the Shares will be funded out of funds legally available for such purpose in accordance with the memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Company is empowered by its memorandum and Articles of Association to repurchase its Shares. The Cayman Islands laws provide that the amount of capital repaid in connection with a share repurchase may only be paid out of either the capital paid up on the relevant shares, or the profits that would otherwise be available for distribution by way of dividend or the proceeds of a new issue of shares made for such purpose. The amount of premium payable on redemption may only be paid out of either the profits that would otherwise be available for distribution by way of dividend or out of the share premium of the Company. Under the Cayman Islands laws, the repurchased Shares will remain part of the authorised but unissued share capital.

(e) Directors, their associates and connected persons

None of the Directors nor, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors having made all reasonable enquiries, any of the close associates of any of the Directors has any present intention, in the event that the proposed Repurchase Mandate is approved by the Shareholders, to sell Shares to the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, no core connected person of the Company has notified the Company that he/she has a present intention to sell Shares to the Company nor has he/she undertaken not to sell any of the Shares held by him/her to the Company in the event that the Repurchase Mandate is granted.

(f) Undertaking of the Directors

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may be applicable, they will exercise the powers of the Company to make repurchase pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate and in accordance with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and any applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

(g) Effect of Takeovers Code and minimum public float

If as a result of a repurchase of Shares, a Shareholder's proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose of Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. As a result, a Shareholder, or a group of Shareholders acting in concert (within the meaning under the Takeovers Code), depending on the level of increase in the Shareholder's interests, could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become(s) obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the register of the Shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 under Part XV of the SFO showed that the Company has been notified of the following interests, being 5% or more of the Company's issued share capital:

Name of shareholder	Total number of Shares held	Approximate percentage of existing shareholding	Approximate percentage of shareholding if the Repurchase Mandate is exercised in full
Mr. Li Kin Shing (Note 1)	6,324,900,000	69.63%	77.37%
Ms. Kwok King Wa (Note 1)	6,324,900,000	69.63%	77.37%
Ever Prosper International Limited (<i>Note</i> 2)	2,052,000,000	22.59%	25.10%
Jovial Elite Limited (Note 3)	900,000,000	9.91%	11.01%
Glory Moment Investments Ltd. (Note 4)	840,000,000	9.25%	10.28%

Notes:

- 1. These 6,324,900,000 Shares comprise (i) 2,052,000,000 Shares held by Ever Prosper, which is held as to 50% and 46.5% by Mr. Li Kin Shing and Ms. Kwok King Wa respectively; (ii) 1,150,470,000 Shares held by Mr. Li Kin Shing in person; and (iii) 3,122,430,000 Shares held by Ms. Kwok King Wa in person. Mr. Li Kin Shing is the spouse of Ms. Kwok King Wa. Accordingly, each of Mr. Li Kin Shing and Ms. Kwok King Wa is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which the other is interested under the SFO.
- 2. The 2,052,000,000 shares are held by Ever Prosper, which is held as to 50%, 46.5% and 3.5% by Mr. Li Kin Shing, Ms. Kwok King Wa and Ms. Li Yin respectively. Mr. Li Kin Shing is the spouse of Ms. Kwok King Wa.
- 3. According to the notice filed by Jovial Elite Limited, Jovial Elite Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is 100% controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP.. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, LP is 100% controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is 100% controlled by Hony Capital Management Limited. Hony Capital Management Limited is 80% controlled by Hony Managing Partners Limited. Hony Managing Partners Limited is 100% controlled by Mr. Zhao John Huan.
- 4. The 840,000,000 Shares are held by Glory Moment Investments Ltd., which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Shin.

In the event that the Directors shall exercise in full the Repurchase Mandate and assuming that there is no issue of Shares in the Company between the Latest Practicable Date and the date of a repurchase, the total interests of the above Shareholders would be increased to approximately the respective percentages shown in the last column above and such increase will not give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.

Assuming that there is no issue of Shares in the Company between the Latest Practicable Date and the date of a repurchase, an exercise of the Repurchase Mandate whether in whole or in part may result in less than the relevant prescribed minimum percentage of the Shares of the Company being held by the public as required by the Stock Exchange. The Directors have no intention to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to an extent as may result in a public shareholding of less than such prescribed minimum percentage.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

2. SHARE PURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company had not repurchased any of the Shares during the previous six months immediately preceding and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

3. SHARE PRICES

During each of the previous 12 months, the highest and lowest traded prices for Shares on the Main Board were as follows:

	Price Per Share	
	Highest	Lowest
Month	HK\$	HK\$
2016		
April	0.316	0.19
May	0.287	0.228
June	0.234	0.195
July	0.214	0.185
August	0.229	0.161
September	0.389	0.175
October	0.268	0.221
November	0.253	0.208
December	0.249	0.209
2017		
January	0.207	0.173
February	0.220	0.166
March	0.223	0.173
April (up to the Latest Practicable Date)	0.211	0.168



精英國際有限公司

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 1328)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general meeting of INTERNATIONAL ELITE LTD. (the "Company") will be held at Lily Room, 3/F, Best Western Plus Hotel Hong Kong, 308 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 6 June 2017 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:-

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

- 1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the reports of the directors and auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.
- 2. To re-elect auditors and to authorise the board of directors of the Company (the "Board") to fix their remuneration.
- 3. A. To re-elect Ms. Li Yin as director of the Company ("**Director(s)**");
 - B. To re-elect Mr. Cheung Sai Ming as Director;
 - C. To re-elect Mr. Chen Xue Dao as Director;
 - D. To authorise the board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the Directors.
- 4. As special business, to consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions with or without amendments as ordinary resolutions:

A. "THAT

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to allot, issue and deal with the new shares in the share capital of the Company or convertible into shares, options, warrants or similar rights to subscribe for shares or such convertible securities of the Company, and to make or grant offers, agreements and/or

- options (including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of such powers, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;
- (b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and/or options (including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;
- (c) the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as herein defined) pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Right Issue (as hereinafter defined), (ii) the exercise of any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and/or other eligible persons of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company or (iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of the cash payment for a dividend on shares of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the "Articles of Association"), shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
- (d) for the purpose of this Resolution, "Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
 - (i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
 - (ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the Articles of Association or any applicable law to be held; and
 - (iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting."

"Right Issue" means an offer of shares or other securities of the Company or an offer or issue of warrants, options or other securities giving rights to subscribe for shares of the Company, open for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares of the Company or any class thereof on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China).

B. "THAT

- (a) subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to purchase its own shares, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") or of any other stock exchange, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved and authorised;
- (b) the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of the Company to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
- (c) for the purpose of this Resolution, "Relevant Period" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:
 - (i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
 - (ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the Articles of Association or any applicable law to be held; and
 - (iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting."

C. "THAT

conditional upon Resolutions 4A and 4B being passed, the aggregate nominal amount of the number of shares in the capital of the Company which are repurchased by the Company under the authority granted to the Directors as mentioned in Resolution 4B shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of share capital that may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to Resolution 4A above."

On behalf of the Board
International Elite Ltd.
Li Kin Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 April 2017

As at the date of this notice, the executive Directors are Mr. Li Kin Shing, Ms. Li Yin, Mr. Wong Kin Wa and Mr. Li Wen; the independent non-executive Directors are Mr. Chen Xue Dao, Mr. Cheung Sai Ming and Mr. Liu Chun Bao.

Notes:

- (1) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the head of the appointor or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under its seal or under the hand of any officer, attorney or other person duly authorised to sign the same.
- (2) A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and, on a poll, vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the annual general meeting to represent the member.
- (3) In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited with the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong together with any power of attorney or other authority, under which it is signed, or a certified copy of that power of authority, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. Completion and return of a form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending in person and voting at the annual general meeting or any adjournment thereof, if he so wish and in such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.
- (4) In the case of joint holders of any shares in the Company, any one of such joint holders may vote at the annual general meeting, either in person or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if he was solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint holders are present at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first on the register of members in respect of such shares shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint registered holders.
- (5) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 1 June 2017 to Tuesday, 6 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company shall be effected. To qualify for the attendance and voting at the annual general meeting of the Company, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 May 2017.